
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CORPORA T E  
C OMM I T T E E  

   

Thursday, 13th October, 2016 
 

at 6.30 pm 
   

Room 3, Assembly Hall, Hackney Town Hall, 
Mare Street, London E8 1EA 

Committee Membership 
  
Cllr Will Brett; Cllr Barry Buitekant 
Cllr Laura Bunt; Cllr Mete Coban 
Cllr Susan Fajana-Thomas (Vice-Chair) 
Cllr Katie Hanson; Cllr Christopher Kennedy 
Cllr Michael Levy; Cllr Sally Mulready 
Cllr M Can Ozsen; Cllr Clare Potter 
Cllr Ian Sharer; Cllr Nick Sharman 
Cllr Vincent Stops;  
Cllr Jessica Webb (Chair) 
 

Tim Shields 
Chief Executive  
 

Contact: 
Rabiya Khatun 
Governance Services Officer 
Tel: 020 8356 6279 
Email: Rabiya.khatun@hackney.gov.uk 

 
The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting 



 

 

 

AGENDA 
Thursday, 13th October, 2016 

  

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 
 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST - MEMBERS TO DECLARE AS 

APPROPRIATE  
 

 
3   CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  1 - 6 

 
4   ENVIRONMENTAL ENFORCEMENT - ANNUAL ASSESSMENT 

OF THE LOCAL ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ENFORCEMENT 
STRATEGY AND ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 2014/15  

7 - 24 

 
5   HIGHWAYS OBSTRUCTION AND ENFORCEMENT - VERBAL 

REPORT  
 

 
6   WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17  25 - 26 

 
7   ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR 

IS URGENT  
 

Item No  Page No 



 

 

 
Access and Information 

 

Location 

 
Hackney Town Hall is on Mare Street, bordered by Wilton Way and Reading Lane, 
almost directly opposite Hackney Picturehouse. 
 
 
Trains – Hackney Central Station (London Overground) – Turn right on leaving the 
station, turn right again at the traffic lights into Mare Street, walk 200 metres and look 
for the Hackney Town Hall, almost next to The Empire immediately after Wilton Way. 
 
 
Buses 30, 48, 55, 106, 236, 254, 277, 394, D6 and W15. 
 
 

Facilities 

There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall. 
 
Induction loop facilities are available in the Committee Rooms and Council Chamber 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 
 
Copies of the Agenda 
The Hackney website contains a full database of meeting agendas, reports and 
minutes. Log on at: www.hackney.gov.uk 
Paper copies are also available from Governance Services whose contact details are 
shown on page 1 of the agenda.  
 
Council & Democracy- www.hackney.gov.uk  
 
The Council & Democracy section of the Hackney Council website contains details 
about the democratic process at Hackney, including: 
 

• Mayor of Hackney  
• Your Councillors  
• Cabinet  
• Speaker  
• MPs, MEPs and GLA 
• Committee Reports  
• Council Meetings  
• Executive Meetngs and Key Decisions Notice 
• Register to Vote 
• Introduction to the Council  
• Council Departments  
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
Where a meeting of the Council and its committees are open to the public, the press 
and public are welcome to report on meetings of the Council and its committees, 
through any audio, visual or written methods and may use digital and social media 
providing they do not disturb the conduct of the meeting and providing that the 
person reporting or providing the commentary is present at the meeting. 
 
Those wishing to film, photograph or audio record a meeting are asked to notify the 
Council’s Monitoring Officer by noon on the day of the meeting, if possible, or any 
time prior to the start of the meeting or notify the Chair at the start of the meeting. 
 
The Monitoring Officer, or the Chair of the meeting, may designate a set area from 
which all recording must take place at a meeting. 
 
The Council will endeavour to provide reasonable space and seating to view, hear 
and record the meeting.  If those intending to record a meeting require any other 
reasonable facilities, notice should be given to the Monitoring Officer in advance of 
the meeting and will only be provided if practicable to do so. 
 
The Chair shall have discretion to regulate the behaviour of all those present 
recording a meeting in the interests of the efficient conduct of the meeting.   Anyone 
acting in a disruptive manner may be required by the Chair to cease recording or 
may be excluded from the meeting. Disruptive behaviour may include: moving from 
any designated recording area; causing excessive noise; intrusive lighting; 
interrupting the meeting; or filming members of the public who have asked not to be 
filmed. 
 
All those visually recording a meeting are requested to only focus on recording 
councillors, officers and the public who are directly involved in the conduct of the 
meeting.  The Chair of the meeting will ask any members of the public present if they 
have objections to being visually recorded.  Those visually recording a meeting are 
asked to respect the wishes of those who do not wish to be filmed or photographed.   
Failure by someone recording a meeting to respect the wishes of those who do not 
wish to be filmed and photographed may result in the Chair instructing them to cease 
recording or in their exclusion from the meeting. 
 
If a meeting passes a motion to exclude the press and public then in order to 
consider confidential or exempt information, all recording must cease and all 
recording equipment must be removed from the meeting room. The press and public 
are not permitted to use any means which might enable them to see or hear the 
proceedings whilst they are excluded from a meeting and confidential or exempt 
information is under consideration. 
 
Providing oral commentary during a meeting is not permitted. 

RIGHTS OF PRESS AND PUBLIC TO REPORT ON MEETINGS 



 

 

 
 
 
Hackney Council’s Code of Conduct applies to all Members of the Council,   
the Mayor and co-opted Members.  
 
This note is intended to provide general guidance for Members on declaring 
interests. However, you may need to obtain specific advice on whether you have an 
interest in a particular matter. If you need advice, you can contact: 
 

• The Corporate Director of Legal, HR and Regulatory Services; 
• The Legal Adviser to the committee; or 
• Governance Services. 

 
If at all possible, you should try to identify any potential interest you may have before 
the meeting so that you and the person you ask for advice can fully consider all the 
circumstances before reaching a conclusion on what action you should take.  
 
 
 
 
You will have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter if it:  

 
i. relates to an interest that you have already registered in Parts A and C of the 

Register of Pecuniary Interests of you or your spouse/civil partner, or anyone 
living with you as if they were your spouse/civil partner; 

 
ii. relates to an interest that should be registered in Parts A and C of the  Register 

of Pecuniary Interests of your spouse/civil partner, or anyone living with you as 
if they were your spouse/civil partner, but you have not yet done so; or 

 
iii. affects your well-being or financial position or that of your spouse/civil partner, 

or anyone living with you as if they were your spouse/civil partner. 
 
 
 
 
 
i. Declare the existence and nature of the interest (in relation to the relevant 

agenda item) as soon as it becomes apparent to you (subject to the rules 
regarding sensitive interests).  

 
ii. You must leave the room when the item in which you have an interest is being 

discussed.  You cannot stay in the meeting room or public gallery whilst 
discussion of the item takes place and you cannot vote on the matter.  In 
addition, you must not seek to improperly influence the decision. 

 
iii. If you have, however, obtained dispensation from the Monitoring Officer or 

Standards Committee you may remain in the room and participate in the 
meeting.  If dispensation has been granted it will stipulate the extent of your 
involvement, such as whether you can only be present to make representations, 
provide evidence or whether you are able to fully participate and vote on the 
matter in which you have a pecuniary interest. 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS 

1.  Do you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter on 
the agenda or which is being considered at the meeting? 

 

 

2. If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in an item on the 
agenda you must: 



 

 

 
 
 
You will have ‘other non-pecuniary interest’ in a matter if: 
 
i. It relates to an external body that you have been appointed to as a Member or 

in another capacity; or  
 
ii. It relates to an organisation or individual which you have actively engaged in 

supporting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
i. Declare the existence and nature of the interest (in relation to the relevant 

agenda item) as soon as it becomes apparent to you.  
 
ii. You may remain in the room, participate in any discussion or vote provided that 

contractual, financial, consent, permission or licence matters are not under 
consideration relating to the item in which you have an interest.   

 
iii. If you have an interest in a contractual, financial, consent, permission or licence 

matter under consideration, you must leave the room unless you have obtained 
a dispensation from the Monitoring Officer or Standards Committee.  You 
cannot stay in the room or public gallery whilst discussion of the item takes 
place and you cannot vote on the matter.  In addition, you must not seek to 
improperly influence the decision.  Where members of the public are allowed to 
make representations, or to give evidence or answer questions about the matter 
you may, with the permission of the meeting, speak on a matter then leave the 
room. Once you have finished making your representation, you must leave the 
room whilst the matter is being discussed.   
 

iv. If you have been granted dispensation, in accordance with the Council’s 
dispensation procedure you may remain in the room.  If dispensation has been 
granted it will stipulate the extent of your involvement, such as whether you can 
only be present to make representations, provide evidence or whether you are 
able to fully participate and vote on the matter in which you have a non 
pecuniary interest.   

 
 
 
 

Advice can be obtained from Yinka Owa, Director of Legal on 020 8356 6234 or 
email Yinka.Owa@hackney.gov.uk 
 
 

 

3.  Do you have any other non-pecuniary interest on any matter on 
the agenda which is being considered at the meeting? 

 

4. If you have other non-pecuniary interest in an item on the agenda 
you must: 

 

 

Further Information 
 



 
 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY, 14TH JULY, 2016 
 
Councillors Present:  
 

Cllr Jessica Webb in the Chair 

 Cllr Katie Hanson, Cllr Christopher Kennedy, 
Cllr M Can Ozsen, Cllr Clare Potter, 
Cllr Nick Sharman and Cllr Vincent Stops 

  
Apologies:  
 

Councillors Susan Fajana-Thomas and 
Vincent Stop 
 

Officers in Attendance: Stephen Rix (Legal Services); Aleyne Fontenelle 
(Head of Projects and Regulatory Services); Natalie 
Broughton (Strategic Policy Manager); Jacob Tong 
(Monitoring and Research Officer) 
 

  
1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Fajana-Thomas and 

Stops. 
 
1.2 Apologies for lateness were received from Councillors Kennedy and Potter. 
 
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST - MEMBERS TO DECLARE AS 

APPROPRIATE  
 
2.1 There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3 CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS  
 
3.1 The previous minutes of the meetings held on 18 February 2016, 25 May 2016 

and 8 June 2016 were approved as a correct record of the meeting. 
 
Matters arising 
 
3.2 Annual report of the Community Safety Team and Noise Nuisance – Minutes of 

the meeting held on 18 February 2016   
Councillor Hanson referred to paragraph 4.10 of the minutes of the previous 
meeting and requested an update in respect of the register of construction 
waivers. 
 

3.3 Corporate Committee Report Template - Minutes of the meeting held on 18 
February 2016   

 With regard to paragraph 5.10, Councillor Sharman indicated that the report 
template should reflect the requirements of the Corporate Committee.  It was 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Thursday, 14th July, 2016  
agreed that the Chair in conjunction with Councillor Sharman and relevant 
officers would review the report template.  

 
  

4 FOOD LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICE PLAN 2016/17  
 
4.1 Aleyne Fontenelle, Head of Projects and Regulatory Services introduced the 

report on the Food Law Enforcement Service Plan (FLESP). The plan sets out 
the inspection programme for the Borough’s food premises for 2016/17 and as 
of 1 April 2016 has 1024 food hygiene and 1157 food standards interventions 
due. The performance of the Food Safety Service was measured against its 
fulfilment of the Plan and the percentage of broadly compliant premises within 
the Borough.  Ms Fontenelle highlighted that 84% of premises were broadly 
compliant, an increase from the previous year and training had been delivered 
to new businesses with further training to raise awareness of food safety.  The 
Business Compliance Consultancy Service would provide additional services 
beyond the statutory service to local businesses.  Ms Fontenelle summarised 
the areas for development and improvement over the next two years including 
ICT, partnership work and joined up interventions.  

 
4.2  Councillor Hanson commented on Hackney Service Centre’s (HSC) food rating 

score and asked how Hackney Council compared with other London boroughs 
in respect of premises broadly compliant with food hygiene.  Ms Fontenelle 
stated that HSC had in fact received a three star rating for food hygiene and 
that Hackney Council was part of North-East Sector London Food Liaison 
Group and regularly engaged in benchmarking exercises with other boroughs. 
Ms Fontenelle stated that Hackney ranked within the upper quartile of 
authorities enforcing food safety and the Food Standards Agency findings of the 
Local Authority Enforcement Monitoring System (LAEMS) report would be 
incorporated within next year’s report. 

 
ACTION: Ms Fontenelle will circulate the LAEMS report to Members when it becomes 

available and also incorporate the findings into the next report to be submitted 
at a future meeting. 

 
4.3  Councillor Sharman asked about the risks to the Council of the premises 

that were non-compliant with food safety; how the Council planned to meet 
the service challenges following a 17% rise in the number of food 
businesses in the Borough; whether the operational issues that had 
prevented phase 3 of the Tackling Food Fraud Project had been resolved; 
and setting clear targets and achievements to develop the service.  

 
4.4 Ms Fontenelle stated that 14% of premises that were identified as non-

compliant with food safety had failed the structure component of the 
assessment. To improve compliance rates in future the Council would be 
monitoring the three areas of hygiene, structure and food management in order 
to identify and target support to businesses.  The Council was also promoting 
the Food and Hygiene Rating system to improve compliance and working with 
businesses through a range of interventions to raise awareness and bring about 
behavioural change. Enforcement action was available against those 
businesses that persistently failed to comply.  

  

Page 2



Thursday, 14th July, 2016  
4.5 With regard to the demand on the service due to an increase in food 

businesses in the borough, the service’s approach had been to focus on 
higher risk premises and conduct partial inspections on broadly compliant 
category C premises.  However, the service would be moving towards a 
cross cutting enforcement model which would include secondary inspections 
that would improve the Council’s enforcement functions ensuring effective 
and targeted enforcement in that the Service was working jointly with other 
services such as Environmental Enforcement to promote compliance.  The 
Council was also working jointly with other services such as Environmental 
Enforcement to promote compliance.   

 
4.6 Ms Fontenelle advised that Phase 3 of the Tackling Food Fraud Project had 

stalled due to concerns regarding intelligence gathering and would hopefully 
resume at the end of 2016.  The project was currently being reviewed and 
the Council was examining alternative means of gathering further 
intelligence, which could involve further partnership working, intelligence 
gathering from other agencies and the use of directed surveillance.  
 

4.7 Ms Fontenelle referred the Committee to the Annual Food Service 
performance data set out in paragraph 6.4.1 of the report and stated that as 
part of the six month review, targets would be incorporated in the data 
update in December 2016. 

 
4.8 The Chair referred to Effective Partnership Working and asked what had 

been identified as ‘nuisance’.  Ms Fontenelle advised that officers were 
currently working with other services to identify the causes of nuisance in 
relation to commercial noise, odour control and waste management and on a 
project to monitor carbon monoxide in certain food businesses. Partnership 
with other external agencies was also taking place and the findings of the 
project would be available in December 2016.  

 

4.9 Councillor Ozsen asked if the inspections of small business also examined at 
a product’s supply chain. Ms Fontenelle explained that as part of Hackney 
Council’s or the national sampling programme, samples were regularly taken 
during inspections and visits. The service focused on food traceability during 
small business inspections and certificates had to be provided for imported 
foods.  The service also participated in the London Food Co-Ordinating 
Group that determined the samplings to be undertaken in London. 
 

4.10 Councillor Ozsen asked about food fraud, in particular the mislabelling of 
imported food in particular meat products and the length of time taken to 
produce sample reports.  Ms Fontenelle said that some meats were sold 
through brokers and difficult to trace however, the Council carried out random 
sampling to ensure that foods were correctly labelled. The Council had a 
service agreement in place to have analysis results within 6 to 8 weeks on 
average and the public analyst service was governed by legislation to ensure 
accuracy. Sample testing cost as much as £200 per sample and due to the 
costs any decision for testing was taken by the food safety service on risk 
basis. 

 
4.11 Councillor Kennedy enquired about the action taken against takeaways near 

schools and if the recent change in legislation had contributed to businesses 
failing the food inspection.  Ms Fontenelle advised that the Healthy Catering 

Page 3



Thursday, 14th July, 2016  
Commitment project would be continuing to target takeaways that were 
located close to schools and it had been identified that the higher failure rate 
was often due to businesses locating into unsuitable premises, and work was 
being undertaken to address this issue.   

 

RESOLVED to: 
1.  approve the Food Law Enforcement Service Plan 2016/17;  
2. approve the level and scope of work being carried out to meet the 

requirements of the plan. 
 
 

5 PLANNING SERVICE ANNUAL REPORT/AUTHORITY MONITORING 
REPORT  

 
5.1 Natalie Broughton, Strategic Policy Manager, introduced the report on the Local 

Plan Authority Monitoring Report (AMR) for 2015.  Ms Broughton 
summarised the key findings of the AMR including the key challenges in 
relation to Housing, Employment, Retail and Town Centres, Communities, 
Culture, Education and Health, Transport, Open spaces Environment and 
Climate Change, Heritage and Design and Planning Performance. 

5.2 Councillor Kennedy requested that paragraph 8.26 at page 139 of the report be 
amended to further clarify whether the new school sites were temporary sites 
and whether the proposed school completion in 2017 was realistic as a 
feasibility study had yet to be undertaken.   Ms Broughton indicated that she 
would seek clarification regarding the sites and completion date and also 
proposed to delete part of the paragraph. 

 
5.3 Councillor Sharman welcomed the references to the new local plan (LP33) and 

asked for additional references to be made in the document. Councillor 
Sharman also asked what measures would be taken to ensure the Council 
aimed to achieve its objectively assessed need for 60%  of new housing to be 
social rented; how the Council’s new Local Plan intended to protect 
employment floor space; consider alternative funding to meet the infrastructure 
needs of the borough in addition to the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL); 
with a total of 4.4m entries/exits at stations in 2015, whether the Council had 
any strategies in place to address future pressures on transport; and limiting 
construction of tall buildings in the borough. 

 
5.4 Ms Broughton responded to the points as follows: 

• Housing: The need to provide 60% of new housing as social housing is 
based on strategic housing market assessments (2015) as part of the 
evidence base for the new local plan.  This amount represents the ideal 
level of affordable housing regardless of national and regional planning 
policy, which balance affordable housing against viability and other 
concerns, and this information would form a key part of the affordable 
housing target set out in the new local plan.   Mr Tong indicated that 
further information on how the target would achieved was available at 
paragraph 5.1 at page 102 of the report. 

• Employment: With regard to the challenges in loss of employment 
floorspace, Ms Broughton advised the strategic policy team was currently 
undertaking an Employment Land Study (ELS) to determine the supply 
and demand for new floorspace and key trends and will play a key role in 

Page 4



Thursday, 14th July, 2016  
employment policies in the Local Plan.  Mr Tong highlighted that a large 
number of planning permissions had been approved for B1 Class (Office), 
especially in the Shoreditch area, and when these applications were 
implemented there would be a significant increase office floor space.   

• Communities, Culture, Education and Health:  Ms Broughton stated that 
the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) had been incorporated in to the 
Local Plan. While there was currently a shortfall in CIL funding, as more 
developments commenced more funding would be collected which would 
reduce the shortfall.   

• Transport:  It was reported that Transport Officers were examining the 
provision of transport and addressing the projected higher demand for 
public transport in the future. In addition, the proposed Crossrail 2 was 
expected to meet some of the future demand as well as improving 
connectivity and facilitating growth. 

• Heritage and Design: Ms Broughton stated that through the Local Plan the 
Council would continue to monitor the number of planning permissions 
granted for tall buildings in the borough and the effectiveness of 
Hackney’s Tall Buildings strategy.  It was noted that a boroughwide 
Characterisation Study would be undertaken in order to inform future 
policies on tall buildings. 

 
5.5 Councillor Ozsen enquired about the plans to create employment opportunities 

and education programmes for young people in the borough and an affordable 
community infrastructure for local people.  Ms Broughton advised that planning 
obligations are sought for employment and education opportunities through the 
Planning Obligations SPD with funding secured from the section 106 
agreements and the Community Infrastructure Levy.  Mr Tong indicated that the 
AMR recorded that in 2014/15 the council received £168,905.53 in payments 
relating to Employment and Job Creation and £365,232.08 for education and 
training from previously signed S106 agreements.  

 
5.6 Councillor Ozsen asked about the development of affordable social facilities for 

local people.  Mr Tong stated that community leisure and retail uses were 
encouraged as art of mixed use developments and that such social facilities 
had been provided, albeit at a lower rate than shops and retail.  Councillor 
Ozen also requested that the next AMR contained more information about 
environmental impacts across the borough.  Ms Broughton responded that the 
next AMR would extend this section of the report. 

 
5.7 Councillor Kennedy referred to the borough’s night time economy and stated 

that the increase in A3 (Restaurants and cafés) use outside town centres may 
be the result of the Council’s Special Policy Areas in Dalston and Shoreditch 
which restrict the licensing of new venues in these areas. He also questioned 
why planning policy encouraged such uses in areas such as Shoreditch and 
Dalston when they already had a high concentration of licensed premises and 
associated issues of public nuisance. It was important for more cycle and 
walking lanes to be promoted in residential areas with the increase in mixed 
use developments   Ms Broughton advised that this was an opportunity to 
address the special policy area issue in the new Local Plan and that there 
needed to be further study of future uses to develop and feed into the local 
plan.  

 

Page 5



Thursday, 14th July, 2016  
RESOLVED to approve the Authority Monitoring Report 2015 (as set out in 
Appendix 1) subject to the schedule of amendments to be agreed by the Chair. 
 

6 WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17  
 
6.1 The Chair introduced the work programme 2016/17 of the Corporate 

Committee. 
 
RESOLVED  to approve the work programme of the Corporate Committee for the 
Municipal Year 2016/17 as set out in Appendix 1. 
 
 

7 ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR IS 
URGENT  

 
7.1 There was no other urgent business. 
 

 
Duration of the meeting: 6.30  - 8.35 pm  
 
Contact: 
Rabiya Khatun 
Governance Services Officer 
020 8356 6279 

Page 6



 
 
 

 
 
CORPORATE COMMITTEE 

 
13th October 2016 
  
 

 
CLASSIFICATION:  
 
Open  
 
If exempt, the reason will be listed in the 
main body of this report. 

 
WARD(S) AFFECTED 
 
All Wards 
 
 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR 
 
Kim Wright, Corporate Director of Health and Community Services  
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL ENFORCEMENT – ANNUAL ASSESSMENT OF THE LOCAL 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND ANNUAL 
PERFORMANCE REPORT 2015/16 
 
 
 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



1.  INTRODUCTION 
 
 This report sets out the annual performance report across the 

environmental enforcement remit for the 2015/16 financial year and an 
annual strategic assessment of the Local Environmental Quality 
Enforcement Strategy.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
             
            The Corporate Committee is recommended to:  
 
2.1 Note the annual performance report for the service and the annual 

assessment of the Local Environmental Quality Enforcement 
Strategy aligned to the Cross cutting Enforcement review.  

 
3.  REASONS FOR DECISION 
 
3.1 This report which is for noting, adheres to the requirement previously 

agreed by Regulatory Committee to report annually on the Environmental 
Enforcement service.  

 
4.0 Summary of Performance in 2015/16 
 

4.1 Appendix 1 details Key Performance and Appendix 2 an overview of fixed 
penalty and other statutory notices issued in 2015/16. A large proportion 
(72%) of enforcement actions concern waste and litter/urination volume 
crime issues; this includes commercial and residential waste enforcement, 
the tackling of unregulated waste and fly-tipping and volume crime 
offences such as street litter and urination. Highways enforcement such as 
skips, A-boards and hoardings is the third most active area for formal 
action taking up 9.0% of our outturn. Other areas of our remit such as dog 
control, illegal street trading, graffiti and legal notices make up the 
remaining actions. These actions are reflected in our priority work and 
achievements throughout 2015-16 concerning unregulated waste, volume 
crime and A-board policy changes and enforcement. Overall the service 
has performed very well against all set performance indicators with 
outturns achieved or exceeded. 

 
4.1.1 The following sections provides narrative on work undertaken against our 

wider outcomes:  
 
4.1.2 The A-board policy which was implemented in 13/14 is continuously being 

enforced by the environmental enforcement team. We have seen high 
levels of compliance with the policy once businesses become aware of the 
offence.  There still remains a challenge with new businesses often 
displaying A-boards but once notified they fall into compliance. Officers are 
still proactive in identifying A-boards and taking relevant action. We also 
get referrals from members of the public where they have also seen A-
boards as they are aware of this offence due to the publicity and 
information being published about A-boards.  

 

Page 8



4.1.3 TfL are responsible for the red route areas throughout Hackney and have 
uniformed officers who visit periodically and take action where required in 
line with their policy which mirrors the process we currently have in place in 
Hackney.  We also have good working relationship where cases referred or 
identified by Hackney is actioned and feedback provided. However we are 
aware that some further work is required and is currently on-going regarding 
timely action being taken by TFL when requested by the Council, so that 
actions and enforcement work across the borough are consistent. 

 
4.1.4 Members will be aware that previously Council officers have shared our best 

practice and protocols with other boroughs and TFL. We will again approach 
TFL directly regarding our current concerns and we will provide an oral 
update on our current position with TFL at Corporate Committee.  

 
4.1.5 Overview of legal proceedings - The service has instigated a number of legal 

proceedings against a number of businesses who operate in Hackney and are 
unwilling to adhered to the Council`s initial requests to change their behaviour 
or rectify issues through informal and formal channels. Prosecutions are 
normally the last resort. Over £38k have been awarded to cases that have 
been taken to court from the service. Below are a few cases summaries and 
outcome:  

Kaca Express Limited/Cuma Altunatmaz 138A Upper Clapton Road:  
Offences for Fly tipping and failure to comply with Duty of Care  
Total in charges and costs outcome £2,743.45 
 
Satmar Meats & Poultry Ltd 8-10 Stamford Hill: 
Offences for fly tipping and failure of duty of care  
Total in charges and costs £2,695.00  
 
Le Cantine limited 6 Stoke Newington High Street:  
Offences for fly tipping and failure of duty of care:  
Total in charges and costs £2,870.00  
 
Griller 66 Limited 66 Stamford Hill:  
Offences for fly tipping and failure of duty of care  
Total in charges and costs £1,810.00  
 
Andrew Wise & Wise Skip Ltd   
Offences of unlicensed skip  
Total in charges and costs £4,662.00    
 
Nazar Restaurant, 228 Well Street 
Offences for Waste Duty of Care   
Total in charges and costs £1,503.00    
 
Shepherds Hackney Ltd 25 Marsh Hill,  
Offences for Waste Duty of 
Total in charges and costs £5,765.00    
 

Page 9



Hackney Coffee Company Limited / Hackney Bureau  
Offences for Waste Duty of Care   
Total in charges and costs £1,702.00   

Mr Mahmou Hasnaoui 11C Chapman Road  
Offences for Waste Duty of Care   
Total in charges and costs £1,422.00 
 
Lift 574 Limited 574 -576 Kingsland Road 
Offences for Fly-tipping and Waste Duty of Care   
Total in charges and costs £9,870.00 
   
Britannia Café 299 Mare Street 
Offences for Fly-tipping and Waste Duty of Care   
Total in charges and costs £1,765.00 
 
Barrel Boulangerie, 110-112 Hoxton Street 
Offences for Fly-tipping and Waste Duty of Care   
Total in charges and costs £880.00. 
 

4.1.6 To enhance the work that is currently being done, the enforcement team have 
continued to provide training to the Community Wardens in the issuing of 
volume crime offences e.g. littering/urination; and they are now fully aware of 
both the legal and practical elements in dealing with Illegal Street trading, but 
they however still require police support in order to be more effective. 

 
4.1.7 We have continued our ongoing campaign regarding Dog Control working 

with Keep Britain Tidy in the use of their “We are Watching” programme; both 
in educating all dog owners/walkers and enforcing against where necessary. 
Particularly work has progressed with our Parks department concerning green 
spaces with dog issues including operations in Clapton Common, Daubeney 
Fields, Shepherdess Place and with Clissold Park. Clissold Park is seen as 
our largest used green space for dogs and action days have been carried out 
throughout the year to tackle irresponsible owners and to imbed the rules; 
educational work has specifically been progressed around the café area.  

 
4.1.8   The main objective of the Unregulated Waste Programme was to deliver 

behaviour change amongst residents and businesses so that the local 
environment would benefit from improved compliance with waste 
management processes. This principle was embedded in each operational 
objective delivered within the programme in relation to environmental 
enforcement to identify non-compliant residents and businesses, take 
appropriate action and change behaviours. Specific streams of the project 
targeted the main roads which had amongst the highest volume of 
unregulated waste, namely the A10 (Kingsland Road through to Stamford 
Hill), Broadway Market and Chatsworth Road. The programme has produced 
a reduction in unregulated waste through direct enforcement; changes to 
contracts (both private and Hackney), new contracts where none were in 
place previously, positive behaviour change around placing out of waste in the 
right locations and during the correct time for collection (timebands in place). 
Positive changes have also been progressed through wider findings and 

Page 10



changes to operational resources i.e. a dedicated principal enforcement 
officer with a focus on the night time economy and weekends with scheduled 
and robust monitoring and enforcement in key locations/areas of concern. 

 
4.1.9  A number of enforcement actions have been carried out on Estates across 

 Hackney. Enforcement activities included a number of advisory notices under 
the Environmental Protection Act 1990 issued against offenders. Nightingale 
Estate was referred to the service as the levels of dumping had increased as 
such, a number of formal enforcement actions such as FPNs and simple 
cautions have been issued and paid. Recent reports have indicated that the 
zero tolerance approach on Nightingale has seen a dramatic improvement in 
the state of the estate as well a massive reduction in the levels of dumps seen 
on the estate. The enforcement Service will continue to work with the housing 
operatives to maintain and improve even further the general environmental 
quality of the estates across the borough.  

 
4.1.10 Partnership working is effective via good working relationships with cross 

Council services. Environmental Enforcement managers utilise partnership 
tasking to share intelligence and inform other services regarding protocols 
and best practice. This has included risk raising and best practice planning 
concerning effective relationship with the Police, particularly concerning 
resources and support in our Night Time and Weekend Economy (NTWE) 
areas. A continued relationship of strength and effectiveness with the Waste 
Operations Service has supported on going communications regarding waste 
issues and compliance across the borough.  

 
4.2 Annual Assessment of the Local Environmental Quality Enforcement 

Strategy  
 
4.2.1 The LEQ Enforcement Strategy continues to provide a sound approach for 

managing Hackney’s local environment in partnership with Environmental 
Operations and other corporate stakeholders. It is recognised as a good 
example of published policy and the setting of standards and the service’s 
strategic framework of Prevention, Protection and Sustainability is an effective 
one and supported within the ongoing cross cutting review of enforcement 
services. The strategy drives integration of enforcement related support within 
partners’ services and develops improved back-office functions to ensure 
efficiency of delivery and a consistent approach. The integrated relationship 
formed between Environmental Enforcement and Environmental Operations 
has enabled the Environmental Operations team to be trained as professional 
witnesses enabling a greater contribution to the enforcement process. In the 
past year Environmental Operations managers have also received direct 
training from Keep Britain Tidy to give them and even greater insight into 
Environmental Enforcement. The Ward Improvement Programme also 
supports this process providing evidence of standards failure and intelligence. 
These examples have been referenced in the cross cutting enforcement 
review with the suggestion that they be harnessed and maximised across the 
services.   

 
4.2.3 The objectives of the strategy remain the same; they are: 

 

Page 11



• Ensure that improvements, both proposed and implemented, are 
sustainable and incorporated into systems and procedures, to ensure 
standards are maintained and not short lived. 

• Improve local environmental quality in neighbourhoods. 
• Be persistent and determined to tackle the potential extent of non-

compliance, particularly where offenders seek to gain financially from 
their behaviour at the Council’s expense. 

• Reduce overall costs of non-compliance. 
• Improve public satisfaction with their local environment. 

 
4.3  Policy Context 
 
 
4.3.1 The LEQ strategy will continue pending any changes that are proposed as 

part of the cross cutting enforcement programme. The Cross Cutting 
Enforcement programme is about re-stating the purpose of the Council’s 
different enforcement functions from the point of view of all of the people 
who live and work in Hackney - to promote a better quality of life, and to 
provide public protection. The programme is exploring the realignment of 
the Council’s enforcement functions to better achieve our aims, while also 
dealing with the additional demand arising from an increased population 
and economic growth, and at the same time also making savings 
Structural change proposals are likely to affect the current Environmental 
Enforcement Function and any proposals will be reported through the 
Delegated Powers reporting process for implementation later in financial 
year 2016/17. The LEQ Enforcement Strategy will be reviewed post this 
time. 

 
4.4 Legislative Considerations: 
 
4.4.1 The Regulators Code - aims to improve the way regulation is delivered at 

the front line. It sets out a clear framework for transparent and accountable 
regulatory delivery and establishes clear principles for how local 
authorities should interact with those they are regulating. The Code is 
underpinned by the statutory principles of good regulation, which provide 
that regulatory activities should be carried out in a way which is 
transparent, accountable, proportionate and consistent and should be 
targeted only at cases in which action is needed. 

 
4.4.2 All Councils were written to by the Government Department BIS in March 

2014 drawing attention to the complaints process detailed in the code. In 
response to this the service undertook a review of its provisions in the LEQ 
Enforcement Strategy and processes. 

 
4.4.3 The service found that the LEQ Enforcement Strategy and processes 

contained within were fully complying with the provisions of the code. One 
key area of the review related to the transparency of the complaints 
process in relation to Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN) and proportionality of 
use. The service’s FPN process is transparent in relation to allowing 
complaints to be made, describing how they can be made and in terms of 
spelling out the resolution process and the FPN process itself. The service 

Page 12



further allows representations to be made in relation to the specific case 
where an FPN has been used. 

 
4.4.4 The LEQ Enforcement strategy also clearly defines how the service 

applies penalties and in what circumstances, ensuring these are 
appropriate to the offence committed and the individual circumstances. 

 
4.4.5 Where necessary the service has reviewed operations and formal 

processes taking account of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing 
Act 2014. Litter Control Notices (Section 92 and 93 of the Environmental 
Protection Act 1990) have been replaced with Community Protection 
Orders/Notices. Under this legislation the Councils existing Dog Control 
Orders (DCOs) will transition into a Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) 
in October 2017. A new FPN will be implemented in 2016-17 under S33 of 
the Environmental Protection Act 1990 to enable more effective 
progression of fly-tipping offences. 

 
     

4.5  Equality Impact Assessment 
 
4.5.1 The current EIA for the LEQ Enforcement Strategy remains appropriate for 

the service. An EIA will be undertaken for any new policy changes arising 
from the Enforcement review.  

 
 
4.6 Sustainability 
 
4.6.1 The objectives and delivery of the LEQ Enforcement Strategy as covered 

in this report support improving the sustainability of Hackney’s public realm 
and environmental operations.  

   
4.7 Consultations 
 
4.7.1 There are no consultations to report. 
 
4.8 Risk Assessment 
 
4.8.1 Rate of growth – Business and household growth in the borough has been 

significant and will continue. Keeping up with this rate of growth is a 
particular challenge for the service within its current resource provision 
especially relating to waste management and sustaining local 
environmental quality. This includes controlling the environmental impacts 
from businesses such as litter and staining throughout their operating 
hours and managing appropriate commercial and household waste 
enforcement. Officers and partners are managing this through measures 
including more night time weekend activities, improving behaviour of 
patrons, minimising highway obstructions such as A Boards and ensuring 
businesses and households have correct arrangements for the waste 
containment and disposal/recycling. 

 
4.8.2 Administering the enforcement process – Mobile ICT working solutions 

and business intelligence software are currently being managed through 

Page 13



corporate ICT delivery programmes. These will provide Council services 
with new technology that will assist in ensuring efficiency and 
effectiveness of delivery. Enviromental Enforcement is part of this 
programme, however in the interim more immediate mobile solutions are 
being sort as part of the cross cutting enforcement review. 

 
4.8.3 Resource deployment - Pressure to provide a visible presence on street 

impacts upon resource available for high priority case 
progression/investigation, sustainable problem solving and behaviour 
change initiatives. Getting the balance right between these is critical for 
the Council moving forward and the joint working approach currently being 
developed supports this. Communications both Borough-wide and locally 
needs to be further utilised alongside physical resources so that together 
they are directed in a way that maximises the feel of “Presence” whilst 
ensuring a keen focus on cost and effectiveness. Environmental 
Enforcement currently benefits from corporate communications support. 

 
4.8.4 The cross cutting enforcement programme is picking up on measures to 

ensure coordinated and accountable processes for cross departmental 
problem solving. This will support a cross departmental approach to 
managing problems in localities and neighbourhoods to bring about 
solutions that are not within the gift of a sole service to resolve. This 
approach would help address problems associated with NTWE, 
Neighbourhood Management and Environmental Crime. Partnership 
Tasking delivers this in part in relation to the crime and anti-social 
behaviour agenda; however it is not designed to take a holistic approach 
to problem solving relating to all the matters highlighted.  

 
5. COMMENTS OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND 

RESOURCES 
 
5.1 This report is an annual performance report across the Environmental 

Enforcement remit for financial year 2015/16. The Environmental 
Enforcement service budget and outturn position for the year ending 
2015/16 is summarised in the table below. The primary cost of which is the 
14 FTE posts within the function. 

  
 2015/16 

Budget 
£'000 

2015/16 
Outturn 
£'000 

Deficit 
(surplus)  
£'000 

Total Expenditure 920 819 (101) 
Total Income (49) (49) 0 
Net Expenditure 871 770 (101) 

 
 
5.2 There are no direct financial implications emanating from this update and 

any initiatives arising from this will need to be reviewed separately.  It is 
noted that the ongoing cross enforcement programme will have an impact 
on the service, looking forward.  

 
6. COMMENTS OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF LEGAL, HR AND 

REGULATORY SERVICES 

Page 14



 
6.1 Legal have achieved significant results in Prosecution cases during the 

year as outlined in the Report. Keeping up with the volume of Prosecution 
cases received is a particular challenge for Legal services due to current 
resources. Legal will however, endeavour to ensure Prosecutions are 
progressed, whilst also continuing to consider that all cases submitted are 
proportionate, transparent and consistent in its approach. Legal will also 
provide ongoing advice on legislative changes as and when required. 

 
 
7. FORWARD PLANNING 
 
7.1 Objectives, Priorities and Key Performance Indicators for 2016/17 
 
7.1.1 The objectives for 2016/17 are as follows: 
 

• Tackling Unregulated Waste 
• Behaviour change and associated cost avoidance including, but not 

limited to tackling volume crime such as litter, responsible dog 
ownership, increasing recycling take up. 

• Improved levels of compliance, cost avoidance and sustained 
improvements in Local Environmental Quality particularly in NTWE and 
contribution to Area Regeneration. 

• A full review of current time bands. 
• Fly-tipping Campaign 

 
7.1.2 The priorities for 2016/17 are as follows:  
 

• Ensure compliance improvements delivered in 2015/16 are sustained. 
• Maintain processes to monitor the implementation in new 

developments of waste related planning conditions and, where this isn’t 
the case, utilise legislation to stipulate requirements. 

• Work with Hackney Housing to ensure processes are in place to tackle 
estate based fly tipping and dog control aligned to on street processes. 

• Campaign to tackle litter and stainage via a voluntary agreement with 
NTWE premises, deploying litter control legislation in the worst cases. 

• Continue to review and propose licence conditions on NTWE premises 
to improve levels of prevention of environmental impacts such as 
through waste training of staff etc. 

• Prioritise tackling the worst fly-tipping cases and deliver tonnage 
reductions of unregulated waste as a proportion of total waste through 
Unregulated Waste Project and fly-tipping campaigns. 

• Improve standards of cleanliness on RSL land through the Ward 
Improvement Programme processes and applying appropriate 
legislative controls. 

• Minimise the spread of Street Art Graffiti containing any new art to an 
appropriately defined area. 

• Tackling local issues/problems through locally defined and targeted, 
enforcement and communications campaigns. 
 

7.1.3 In addition the following KPI’s have been reported in 2015/16: 

Page 15



 

 
 

7.1.4 APPENDIX 
 
Appendix 1: Environmental Enforcement – Performance Report 2015/16 
Appendix 2: Fixed Penalties and statutory notices. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None 
 
 
Report Author 
 

Mark Griffin, 020 8356 3689, 
Mark.Griffin@Hackney.gov.uk 
Anthony Twigg, 020 8356 4471 
Anthony.twigg@hackney.gov.uk 
 

Comments of the 
Corporate Director of 
Finance and Resources 

James Newman, 020 8356 5154 
James.Newman@Hackney.gov.uk 
 

Comments of the 
Corporate Director of 
Legal, HR and Regulatory 
Services 

Pauline Campbell, 020 8356 2775 
pauline.campbell@hackney.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 16



APPENDIX 1 
 

 
1. SERVICE PERFORMANCE - CORPORATE KEY PERFORMANCE 

INDICATORS 
 
1.1 The service monitors performance against a set of 5 performance indicators 

(PIs). The performance information provided in this appendix provides the 
annual out-turns with commentary. 

 
1.2 HCS PR 057 (Quarterly) – (Number of businesses in the borough with a 

trade waste agreement in place). 
 

 
 

1.3 A business that produces waste is required to have a Trade Waste 
Agreement (TWA) which confirms that arrangements are in place for the 
disposal of waste produced by that business. There are approximately 12,000 
businesses within Hackney according to a study undertaken in relation to the 
Hospitality agenda (2014) however an unknown proportion of these 
businesses are operated from home and are low risks in terms of breaches of 
waste legislation. An overall definitive figure for non-domestic rate premises 
that are likely to produce waste isn’t available at present, however the 
Environmental Enforcement team have been driving a process to develop a 
business case for the creation of a “Business Index” working with ICT, 
Business Rates and other key stakeholder across the Council.  

 
 1.4 The number of businesses known to have a TWA in place shows an overall 

decrease of 136 from 6307 (2014-15) to 6171 (2015-16). Whilst these are 
known to have a TWA in place this does not indicate whether those 
businesses are compliant with the terms of those agreements however the 
work to improve levels of compliance are available in later sections of this 
report. 
 

1.5 HCS PR 058 (Bi Annual) – (Tonnage of Unregulated Waste). 
 

 
 

1.6 This indicator is reported on a bi annual basis and captures the estimated 
amount of unregulated waste within the borough. Although the tonnage of 
unregulated waste increased by 166 tonnes from 2014-15, so did the level of 
commercial waste contracted to be collected by the Council. As the economy 
of the Borough grows, particularly the night time economy, regulated 
(contracted) commercial waste tonnage also increases along with unregulated 
waste. Measured as a proportion of the commercial waste portfolio, the level 

Page 17



of unregulated waste remained the same. Also the 3% growth in unregulated 
waste tonnage was lower than the 3.8% overall growth in municipal waste 
collected by the Council.  
 

1.7 HCS PR 059 (Quarterly) – (Number of litter, dog control/fouling, graffiti and 
highway obstruction etc. operations and patrols). 

 

 
 

1.8 The above represents the planned, structured operations undertaken by the 
environmental enforcement team. These are driven by intelligence generated 
from service requests, corporate complaints, Ward Improvement Programme 
(WIP), Partnership Tasking and the enforcement officers’ awareness and 
knowledge of their own areas. 
 

1.9 In 2015-16, 280 targeted patrols/operations were delivered, this is a clear 
decrease from 2014-15 and represents an agreed approach at the beginning 
of the year to deliver larger planned campaigns producing higher quality 
operations and patrols based on intelligence rather than a continual quantity; 
this is reflected in the target set at the beginning of the financial year.  

 
 

1.10 HCS PR 060 (Monthly) – (% of environmental crime service requests 
responded to within 2 working days of receipt) 

 

 
 
1.11 When the Team receives a request, Officers contact the person highlighting 

the issue (if this is possible) and tell them what action the officer proposes to 
take. This invariably involves a visit to the site, an assessment of the issue 
and determination of the action to be taken. Subsequent to this the person 
may be contacted again for further information and/or updated.  
 

1.12 This breakdown below represents all external service requests for initial 
contact with the customer/complainant, the KPI does not reflect the internal 
service requests dealt with which amounts to around the same number of 
request over 2015-16. This customer response performance indicator shows 
an improved percentage above the set target and an increase from 2014-15 
of 98% to 99% 
 

Dog Control Orders  30 
Flyposting 12 
Graffiti 42 
Highway Obstruction 302 
Litter on Private Land 20 

Page 18



Litter on Public Land 61 
Overgrown Hedge - Enforcement  2 
Overgrown Land/Garden          1 
Street Trading 20 
Vehicle Over Highway 7 
Vehicles for Repairs 2 
Vehicles for Sales 1 
Waste Management Private Land 270 
Waste Management Public Land 218 
Grand Total 988 
 

Detailed Quarterly Breakdown of External Service Requests received: 
 

Q1 (April-June) 372 
Accumulation of Refuse         1 
Dog Control Orders  18 
Fly Posting - Enforcement      3 
Fly Tipping - Private Land  91 
Fly Tipping - Public Land  60 
Graffiti - Enforcement         21 
Highway Obstruction 113 
Litter on Private Land 6 
Litter on Public Land 28 
Overgrown Hedge  1 
Overgrown Land/Garden          1 
Residential Waste Duty of Care 20 
Street Trading - Enforcement   5 
Vehicle Over Highway  3 
Vehicles for Repairs on Highway 1 

Q2 (July-Sept) 165 
Dog Control Orders  3 
Fly Posting - Enforcement      3 
Fly Tipping - Private Land  45 
Fly Tipping - Public Land  30 
Graffiti - Enforcement         6 
Highway Obstruction 47 
Litter on Private Land  3 
Litter on Public Land 6 
Residential Waste Duty of Care  19 
Street Trading - Enforcement   3 

Q3 (Oct-Dec) 229 
Dog Control Orders  3 
Fly Posting - Enforcement      5 
Fly Tipping - Private Land 64 
Fly Tipping - Public Land 38 
Graffiti - Enforcement         8 
Highway Obstruction  70 
Litter on Private Land 5 
Litter on Public Land 19 

Page 19



Residential Waste Duty of Care 9 
Street Trading - Enforcement   3 
Vehicle Over Highway  3 
Vehicles for Repairs on Highway 1 
Vehicles for Sales on Highway  1 

Q4 (Jan-Mar) 222 
Dog Control Orders  6 
Fly Posting - Enforcement      1 
Fly Tipping - Private Land  69 
Fly Tipping - Public Land  32 
Graffiti - Enforcement         7 
Highway Obstruction  72 
Litter on Private Land  6 
Litter on Public Land  8 
Overgrown Hedge Enforcement  1 
Residential Waste Duty of Care 10 
Street Trading - Enforcement   9 
Vehicle Over Highway 1 

Grand Total 988 
 

 
 
1.15 HCS PR 063 (Quarterly) – (Number of formal notices issued) 

 

 
 

1.16 The current enforcement strategy is in line with the nationally accepted 
enforcement concordat. This requires a balanced graduated approach 
through education and advice to more formal legal action including 
prosecution. Generally such an approach is effective in tackling enviro-crime 
however the service is careful to ensure that the type of enforcement action is 
proportionate to the seriousness of the offence. 

 
1.17 The number of “formal notices” (part of the formal enforcement process) 

including advisory notices, issued in line with the guidance on PR 063, but 
does not include the range of other actions undertaken to ensure compliance 
or intended outcomes are achieved, such as education, verbal warnings, 
advisory letters, etc. Effective enforcement relies upon sound selection of an 
appropriate level of enforcement proportionate to the offence and 
circumstances, with the aim of achieving compliance and resolution of 
problems.   
 

1.19 The above figure represents a slight decrease of 211 in the number of formal 
notices issued in 2015-16 compared to the previous FY. This is due to the 
volume crime of Fly-posting which we progressed as a priority area in 2014-
15, but did not have this as a set priority for 2015-16.  
 

Page 20



1.20 For Financial Year 2015/16 the payment receipts for FPN’s was £62,589.77 
which is an increase of £12,480.71 in comparison to 2014-15. 
 

1.21 The Team has received a total of 146 corporate complaints, this represents a 
decrease from 2014-15 of 28 from 174 corporate complaints. 

 
2. LEGAL CASEWORK AND PROSECUTION ACTIONS 
 
2.1    The Environmental Enforcement Team have progressed a number of cases to 

the prosecution stage. However at this stage depending on the nature of the 
offence, offenders still have the opportunity to settle before the start of the 
hearing. In settling this may lead to: 

 
• The fine being paid and no further action is taken in relation to that 

offence.   
• A simple caution signed by the offender which stays on file for 5 years 
• A simple caution issued and costs are also paid by the offender. Costs 

may include the recharge for clearing the waste, and any other rechargeable 
costs incurred as a result of the case being progressed to this level. 
• Decision taken by our legal team that the case might not be in the 

public’s interest to progress. 
 
2.2      Below is a breakdown of the cases that have been progressed to the   

prosecution stage. 
 

TYPE OF OFFENCES 
 

No. of Prosecution 
Cases 

Outcome 

Nuisance (ASB Act) 1 pending 
Fly tipping & DOC 11 pending 
Fly –tipping 1 pending 
Littering 10 2 successful - 8 pending 
Illegal Street Trading 1 withdrawn 
Total 24  

 
 
2.3    A total of 14 simple cautions have been signed by offenders over the period      

April 2016 to present these relate to DOC & Fly tipping offences.  
 
2.4    Fixed penalty notices (FPN) have always been a very useful tool for the 

enforcement service. We have a number of offences where FPNs can be used 
an option to discharge liability from prosecution and also acts as a deterrent to 
future offences. The service has brought in an overall total of £16,215.00 which 
have been generated from FPNS. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



APPENDIX 2 
 

1. SERVICE PERFORMANCE BREAKDOWN– Fixed Penalty and other 
Statutory Notices 

 
1.1 Concerning our delivery of formal enforcement notices (including fixed 

penalty and statutory notices), please see the below table which outlines our 
outturns of these formal notices by the offence (environmental crime action) 
type and total 2339 (coincidentally the same number as 2014-15 – see below 
comparison table). 

 
1.2  As you can see a large proportion 47% of enforcement actions have 

concerned volume crime issues regarding littering and urination; this primarily 
related to work progressed in our two biggest commercial and WNTE 
neighbourhoods of Shoreditch and Stoke Newington. 25.3% of actions taken 
are aligned to Waste Enforcement, this includes commercial and residential 
waste enforcement and the tackling of unregulated waste and fly-tipping. 
Highways enforcement such as skips, A-boards, hoarding is our second most 
active area for formal action taking up 9.1% of our outturn. These action are 
reflective in our priority work and achievements throughout 2015-16 
concerning unregulated waste, and Highways Act Enforcement and volume 
crime. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



1.3     Table Breakdown 2015-16 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2015-16          2014-15 Comparison

Formal Notices Issued
Count of 
Enforcment 

Percentage 
of overall 

Count of 
Enforcment 

Percentage of 
overall Output

Dog Control Enforcement 10 0.4 20 0.9
Section 59 Dog Fouling FPN 10

Grafitti Enforcement 4 0.2 12 0.5
Community Protection Notice 2
Community Protection Penalty Notice 1
Unauthorised Marks on the Highway FPN 1

Highways Act Enforcement 213 9.1 321 13.7
Highway Obstruction 48 Hour Removal Notice 5
Highway Obstruction 5 Day Removal Notice 5
Highway Obstruction 7 Day Removal Notice 87
Highway Obstruction FPN 116

Illegal Trading 100 4.3 26 1.1
Illegal Shop Front Trading FPN 1
Section 38 Illegal Street Trading FPN 99

Litter Control Enforcement 16 0.7 0 0
Community Protection Notice 10
Community Protection Penalty Notice 6

Littering Enforcment Volume Crime 1116 47.7 572 24.5
Section 88 Litter FPN 307
Section 88 Urinating FPN 809

Poster/Advertsing Volumn Crime 14 0.6 334 14.3
Fly Posting FPN 7
Fly Posting FPN (without advisory) 7

Prosecution instigation 261 11.2 206 8.8
Intention To Prosecute Letter 261

Request for information during investigation process 14 0.6 23 1
Section 108 Notice 14

Waste Enforcement 591 25.3 1031 44.1
34(5) Notice 256
34(6) FPN 72
47ZA FPN for Section 46 Notice 3
47ZA FPN for Section 47 Notice 26
Community Protection Notice 20
Community Protection Penalty Notice 9
LBH Waste Contract Details / Section 47 Notice 146
NON-LBH Waste Contract Details / Section 47 Notice 19
Section 46 Notice 40

Grand Total 2339

Page 23



1.4  Detailed Quarterly Breakdown 2015-16 
 

 

Dog Control Enforcement 10
Q1 (April-June) 3
Q2 (July-Sept) 4
Q4 (Jan-Mar) 3

Grafitti Enforcement 4
Q2 (July-Sept) 1
Q4 (Jan-Mar) 3

Highways Act Enforcement 213
Q1 (April-June) 62
Q2 (July-Sept) 65
Q3 (Oct-Dec) 24
Q4 (Jan-Mar) 62

Illegal Trading 100
Q1 (April-June) 21
Q2 (July-Sept) 39
Q3 (Oct-Dec) 25
Q4 (Jan-Mar) 15

Litter Control Enforcement 16
Q1 (April-June) 4
Q2 (July-Sept) 4
Q3 (Oct-Dec) 4
Q4 (Jan-Mar) 4

Littering Enforcment Volume Crime 1116
Q1 (April-June) 234
Q2 (July-Sept) 224
Q3 (Oct-Dec) 267
Q4 (Jan-Mar) 391

Poster/Advertsing Volumn Crime 14
Q1 (April-June) 1
Q3 (Oct-Dec) 12
Q4 (Jan-Mar) 1

Prosecution instigation 261
Q1 (April-June) 51
Q2 (July-Sept) 66
Q3 (Oct-Dec) 84
Q4 (Jan-Mar) 60

Request for information during investigation process 14
Q1 (April-June) 10
Q2 (July-Sept) 2
Q4 (Jan-Mar) 2

Waste Enforcement 591
Q1 (April-June) 140
Q2 (July-Sept) 139
Q3 (Oct-Dec) 115
Q4 (Jan-Mar) 197

Grand Total 2339

Page 24



Work Programme of Corporate Committee 2016/17 

14 July 2016 

1 Work Programme 2016/17 To Approve Tim Shields 
(Rabiya Khatun) 

2  Food Law Enforcement Service Plan 
2016/17 

To Approve  Kim Wright 
(Aleyne Fontenelle) 

3 Planning Policy - Authority 
Monitoring Report 

To Approve  Kim Wright 
(Ian Rae) 

 

13 October 2016 

    

1 Environmental Enforcement - Annual 
Assessment Of The Local  
Environmental Quality Enforcement 
Strategy And Annual Performance 
Report 2014/15 

For Information And 
Comment 

Kim Wright 
(Mark Griffin) 

2 Work Programme 2016/17   

 

13 December 2016 

1 Pay Policy Review 2017/18 
 

To Approve Tim Shields 
(Dan Paul) 

2 HR Policy Review To Approve Tim Shields 
(Dan Paul) 

3 Regulatory Services Update For Information And 
Comment 

Kim Wright 
(Aleyne Fontenelle) 

4 Work Programme 2016/17   

 

28 March 2017  

1 HR Policy Review To Approve Tim Shields 
 (Dan Paul) 

2 Annual Report  Of The  
Community Safety Team And Noise 
Nuisance  

For Information And 
Comment 

Tim Shields 
(Steve Bending) 

3 Annual Review Of The Borough Wide 
Designated Public Places Order 

For Information And 
Comment 

Tim Shields 
(Steve Bending) 

4 Work Programme 2016/17   

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	Minutes

	4 ENVIRONMENTAL ENFORCEMENT - ANNUAL ASSESSMENT OF THE LOCAL ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 2014/15
	6 WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17

